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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity the Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of india (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the
Financial Statements and our Independent Auditors’ Report thereon. Our opinion on the Financial
Statements does not cover the Other Information, and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance or conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. The Other Information as aforesaid is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this Auditor's Report. When we read the other information,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to those charged with Governance and take appropriate steps in accordance with the extant
laws.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act and the relevant
provisions of the Act.

This responsihility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
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detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Undersection 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures inthe Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the Key Audit Matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matters
The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 included
in these Financial Statements have been audited by the predecessor auditor M/s NGST & Associates
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Chartered Accountants. The report of the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial
information dated May 25, 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the attached Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi) and 2(f) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With reference to maintenance of accounts and other matter therewith, reference is
invited to paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 as amended.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
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reference to Financial Statements.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence we
have no reporting under this clause.

i With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 31 to the Financials Statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were material foreseeable losses,

There has been no delay in transferring funds to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries

The management has represented that, to the hest of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies)
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
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the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv) (b) above contain any material
misstatement,

v.  The Company has neither proposed nor paid any dividend during the year:

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, has used Tally
Prime which has an audit trail feature w.e.f July 23, 2024. The previous version of
the accounting software did not have the feature of audit trail. Further, for the
periods that the audit trail was enabled (with effect from July 23, 2024) and
operated as aforesaid, the same has been maintained without any tampering and
preserved by the company in compliance with the applicable statutory
requirements for record retention.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari &Co.)
Chartered Accountants

FRN No: 106971W/W101085

)

~ Nlayendrgn
Partner
M. No. — 040441
Mumbai, Dated: May 21, 2025
UDIN: 2504044 \BMUTCW 8628
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ANNEXURE A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited of even date

To the best of our knowledge and information, audit procedures followed hy us, according to the
information provided to us by the Company and the examination of the books of account and
records in the normal course of audit, we state that.

(i) a.(A) The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment including right
of use assets and non-current asset held for sale.

(B) There are no intangible assets and hence this clause is not applicable to the
company.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. We have verified the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in the Financial Statements and based on such verification we
confirm that the same are held in the name of the company.

d. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
or both during the year.

e. There is no proceedings initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2025, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. On the basis of examination of records, we are of the opinion
that the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate and that no
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on
such verification. The discrepancies wherever noted have been properly dealt with in the
books of account of the Company.

(b) The Company does not have working capital limits and hence clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.
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(ili)  The Company has not made investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships. The Company has also not provided guarantee or security or granted loans
or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or
any other parties hence clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  The company has not granted any loans, made any investments, provided any guarantees
and security and thus the provisions of section 185 and 186 with respect to loans,
investments, guarantees, and security given are not applicable to the company hence
clause 3(iv) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the
Company.

(v)  The Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts that are deemed to
be deposits pursuant to sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. As informed to us, there is no order
that has been passed by Company Law Board or Naticnal Company Law Tribunal or Reserve
Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal in respect of the said sections.

(vi)  The maintenance of the cost records under the sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act is
not applicable to the Company, and therefore reporting under paragraph (3)(vi) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(viij  (a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Act, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues except Professional Tax dues with the appropriate authorities during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount is
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable except as given below.

Professional | Professional | Rs. 1.11 Prior Unpaid
Tax Act Tax Lakhs periods till date
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(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute except as given below.

ds and :
Goods end Service | |\ -t parmands 81.09 | 2017-18 LI
Tax Act Commissioner

Total 81.09

(viii)  There are no transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)  (a) The company has not taken any loan from any lenders and hence clause 3(ix)(a) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not availed any term loans during the year and thus reporting under
paragraph (3)(ix)(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries.

(x)  (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year
and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)
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(a) We have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and hence clause 3(xi)(b) of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(c) No whistle blower Complaints were received by the Company during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii) (b) and 3(xii)(c) of
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our examination of the proceedings of the meetings
of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors are concerned. The details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
Accounting Standards.

(a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued during the year
and till date, for the period under audit.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors.

(a) The nature of business and the activities of the Company are such that the Company
is not required to obtain registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934 and hence sub-clause 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b) and 3(xvi)(c) of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(b) There is no CIC in the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 128.60 Lakhs in the current financial year
and cash losses of Rs. 154.09 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors (M/S NGST & Associates Chartered
Accountants) during the year who have resigned on account of professional pre-

LLPIN — ACM-9656 — Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP
[Converted from Natvarlal Vepari & Co. ( a partnership firm with registration no. BA-86186

into LLP w.e.f 23-03-2025]



Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)

903-904, 9th Floor, Raheja Chambers, 213, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021. Tel : (91) (22) 67527100

(xix)

B-Mail ;: nve@nve.in LLPIN : ACM-9656

occupation. Based on our review of reasons of resignation we state that there are no
professional issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. We have also
received the no objection letter from the outgoing auditor who have not indicated any
reasons of professional issues.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company and hence clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) are not applicable to the Company.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP

(Formerly
Chartered
FRN No: 1

N Jayéndr
Partner

known as Natvarlal Vepari &Co.)
Accountants
06971W/W101085

M. No. - 040441

Mumbai, Dated: May 21, 2025
UDIN: 25040 K K4 IRMUTCW 8628
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Daikaffil
Chemicals India Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals with reference to Financial Statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not he detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

LLPIN — ACM-9656 — Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP
[Converted from Natvarlal Vepari & Co. (a partnership firm with registration no. BA-86186)
into LLP w.e.f 23-03-2025]



Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)

903-904, 9th Floor, Raheja Chambers, 213, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021, Tel : (91) (22) 67527100
E-Mail : nve@nve.in LLPIN : ACM-9656

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari &Co.)
Chartered Accountants

FRN No: 106971W/W101085

!

N Jayendra
Partner

M. No. — 040441
Mumbai, Dated: May 21, 2025

UDIN: 2.6 0 Ly 04 4\ BMUTCWBE 28
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DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L24114MH1992PLCO5T7309
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025
(Al figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Asat As at
No. 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 195.67 162,91
(b) Capital Work in Progress 5 31.58 4.61
(c) Financlal assets
(i) Investment 6 18.72 18.72
(i) Loans 7 - 041
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 5.88 -
(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9 3.70 239
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 10 37.33 24,16
Total Non-Current Assets 292.88 213.21
Current Assets
(a) Inventory 1 324,73 116,69
(b} Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 606,00 -
(ii] Cash and cash equivalents 13 66,01 75191
{iii} Other Bank Balance 14 47.51 68.15
(i} Other Financlal Assets 8 233 337
(c) Other current assets 9 101.76 25.04
Total Current Assets 1,148.40 965.05
TOTAL ASSETS 1,441.28 1,178.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 600.00 600.00
(b) Other equity 16 285,22 453,72
Total Equity 885,22 1,053.71
Liabllities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 59.12 -
Total Non- Current Liabilities 59.12 -
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Trade pavyahles 17
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
3463 -
enterprises; and
total mftstandmg dues of l:rEt.ﬂlh:lrs ather than micro Ak p
enterprises and small enterprises,
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 18 15.16 91.26
(b) Other current liabilities 19 2.68 1145
[c) Provision 20 7.91 17.47
Total Current Liabilities 496,94 124,56
Total Liabilities 556,06 124.56
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,441.28 1,178.27

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
Far Matvarlal Vepari & Co LLP

{Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Firm Rggistration No, 106971W/W101085

M layendran
Partner
Mernbership No. 040441
Mumbai

Date: May 21,2025

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited

R.K Shetty
Managing Director

Chlef Financial Officer

S. K. Shetty
Director
DIN: 00038681

Company Secretary



DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L24114MH1992PLCORT309
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

sr Pt Note  Yearended 31st  Year ended 31st Mar
No. RS No. Mar 2025 2024
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 21 749.75 -
Other Income 22 46.85 nn
TOTAL INCOME 796.60 71.11
Il EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 597.87 =
Changes in Inventaries of Finished Goods and Work-in- 24 (94.20) -
Progress
Employee Benefit Expenses 25 11438 162.72
Finance Costs 26 010 L
Depreciation and Amartisation Expenses 27 27.08 35.19
Other Expenses 28 31164 62.48
TOTAL EXPENSES 956,87 260,39
I Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (160.29) (189.28)
IV Tax Expense 29
(a) Current Tax - o
(b) Deferred tax charge / (credit) (1.31) 0.94
{1.31) 0.94
V  Profit/{Loss) for the Year {158.98) (190.22)

VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Plan (9.52)
VIl Total other Comprehensive Income (9.52) =
VIl Total Comprehensive Income for the year [168.50) {120.22)

IX Earnings Per Share
of face value of Rs. 10/- each {in Rupees)
Basic and Diluted 30 (2.65) (3.17)

The accompanylng notes are an Integral part of the financlal state t
As per our report of even date attached For & on behall of the Board of Directors
For Natvarial Veparl & Co LLP Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited

{Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.}
Chartered Accountants
Firm Begistration No. 106971W/W101085

R.K Shetty

N Jay! Managing Director Director
Partner DIN: DO038T03 DIN: 00038681
Membership No. 040441

Mumbai

Date: May 21,2025

Financial Officer Campany Secretary



DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: 12411AMH1992PLCOG7309
Cash Flow Statement for the year cnded 31st March 2025
(Al figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

vegr ended March  Year ended March

Particulars 31,2025 31,2024
[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/[Loss) before tax (160.29) (189.28)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27.08 35.19
Impairement of capital work In progress 4.61
Finance Charge 0.47
Profit on Sale of Assets {20.53) (10.31)
Unrealiased Exchange gain/{loss) 0.24 -
Interest Income [26.23) (60.80)
Operating Profit/{Loss) before changes In working capital (175.12) (224.72)
ADJUSTMENTS FOR ¢
Trade and other Receivables (606.24) -
Inventories (208.10) (0.00)
Other Financial Assets (5.88) 720,03
Other Assets (56.83) (0.42)
Trade payable 466.81 (1.15)
Other Financial Liabilities (12.61) £80.00
Other Liabilities and pravisions 31,31 18.08
Cash flow fram operations after changes in working capital (626.66) 591,82
Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refunded (3.27) -
Net Cash Flow from/{used in) Operating Activities (629.93) 591.82
[B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (Including Capital WIP) (1ca.57) 12.90
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment 2.00 -
Fixed Deposit Investment (net) 20.63 (13.76)
Leans 041 -
Advance towards Share Application 5.88 -
Mevement in Other Bank Balances (3.49) =
Interest on Fixed Deposits 3718 60.80
Net Cash Flow from/{used In) Investing Activities (55.96) 59.93
[C] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Flow from/{used In) Financing Activities - -
Net Increasef (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (685.89) 651,75
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of periad (see Note 1) 751.91 100.17
Cash and Cash Equlvalents at end of period {see Note 1) 66.01 751,91
Note 1:
Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on Hands 0.26 0.11
Balance with Banks 65.75 751.80
Cash and Cash equivalents 66.01 751,91

The Cash Flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standards (IND
AS) 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Matvarlal Vepari & Co LLP Daikaffil Chernicals India Limited
[Formerly known as Natvarlal Veparl & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

FirmfRegistration No, 106971W/W101085 " R
Q /"-_‘_\_\_""‘-. . \\-’*
\

N Jay€ndran R.K Shetty
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 040441 DIN: 00033703 DIN: 00038681

Mumbal
Date: May 21,2025




DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: 124114MH1992PLCO6T7309

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

(All figures are Rupees In Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Face value

Number of shares Amount
% per share

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Opening balance as at 01st April 2023 60,00,000 10.00 600.00
Issue of share capital & . 5
Changes in Equity Share Capital P % i
Balance as at March 31,2024 60,00,000 10.00 600.00
Changes in equity share capital - - -
Closing balance as at 31st March , 2025 60,00,000 10.00 600.00

B. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars General Reserve  Securities Premium  Retalned Earnings Total
Balance at 31st March, 2023 202.00 34,49 407.45 643.94
Profit/(Loss) for the period (190.21) (190.21}
Add: Other Comprehensive Income on Defined Benefit Obligation -
Balance at 315t March, 2024 202.00 34.49 217.24 453.73
Profit/(Loss) for the perlod (158.98) (158.98)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income on Defined Benefit Obligation - (9.52) {9.52)
Balance at 31st March, 2025 202.00 34.49 48.74 285.22

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Natvarlal Vepari & Ca LLP

[Formerly knawn as Natvarlal Veparl & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Firrm Registration Mo. 106971W/W101085

N Jayendran

Partner

Membership No, 040441
Mumbai

Date: May 21,2025

For & on behalf of the

Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited

e
R.K Shetty

Managing Director
DIN: 00038703

[ ==
a R Shet W
chi

ief Financial Officer

Board of Directors

DIN: 00038681

“~Jay C Patel
Company Secretary



DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED

Statement of Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Notes for financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.

Company Overview

Dalkaffil Chemicals India Limited is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India with
registered office situated at E-4, M.I.D.C. Tarapur, Boisar Dist. Maharashtra-401506 and is listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading of organic
chemicals and intermediaries and trading of chemicals.

Authorization of Financial Statements
The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors an May 21, 2025,

These financial statements can be amended by the board of directors till they are placed before the
sharehaolders and also by the shareholders before their approval for adoption.

Statement of Compliances

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of Preparation, Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and Material Accounting
Policy Information:

3.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

» Statement of Compliances
The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS")
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

» The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

a) certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value, and
b) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

» Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued India accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

» The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosures with respect to itemsin the Balance Sheet and Statement
of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming




DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED

Statement of Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Notes for financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the
notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended.

» The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’) and all values are rounded to the
nearest Lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

3.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements requires management’s judgments, estimates and assumptions
that impacts the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
notes thereon. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that might
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

Judgments:

The company's management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, while formulating the company's accounting
policies:

a. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases, attrition rates and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Discount rate: The said parameter is subject to change. In determining the appropriate discount rate
(for plans operating in India), the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies which are consistent with the post-employment benefit obligation. The underlying bonds
are reviewed periodically for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the
analysis since they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.
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Statement of Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Notes for financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

C.

Mortality rate: Itis based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
at an interval in response to demographic changes. Prospective increase in salary and gratuity are
based on expected future inflation rates.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment:

For property, plant and equipment and intangibles, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the company estimates the assets or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. As at the end of the year no
judgement were exercised in this regard which impacts the useful life or the depreciation rates.

Impairment of investment:

The management assesses that all the investment are strategic fit for the company and therefore do
not need any impalrment provisioning as at the year end.

Inventories:

The company estimates the net realisable value (NRV) of its inventories by taking into account
estimated selling price, estimated cost of completion, estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
obsolescence considering the past trend. Inventories are written down to NRV where such NRV is
lower than their cost.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions:

The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based on the assessment of the probability
of an outflow of resources, past experience and circumstances known at the closing date. The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the amount included in other
provisions.

3.3 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to
Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f.
April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Statement of Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Notes for financial statements
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3.4 Material Accounting Policies Information

a) Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

An asset is treated as current when:

- Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

- Itis cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
b) Property Plant and Equipment and Depreciation / Amortisation

A. Items of Property, plant and equipment including Capital-work in-progress are stated at cost, net
of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it
increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other
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repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred. On
transition to INDAS for the first time, the Company adopted the deemed cost approach
mentioned in INDAS 101 - First time adoption in respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. Depreciation is provided on written down value based on useful life of the assets as prescribed
in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal
of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such
sale/disposal, as the case may be.

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in
Years)

Plant & Equipment 20
Computer desktops and laptops 3
Laboratory Equipment 10
Office Equipment 5
Plumbing and Piping 20-25
Electrical Installation 10
Factory Building 30
Non-Factory Building 60
Vehicles 8
Furniture and Fixture 10

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are
reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

¢) Investments
i) Other Investment

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCl (designated as
FVTOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOC| are subsequently measured at fair value through OCI. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearlyrepresents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments other than the above are classified as FVTPL and are subsequently measured at fair
value. The net gains and losses, including any dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

d) Inventories

All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost and Net Realizable Value',

i. Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost and net
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e)

f)

realisable value and for this purpose, cost is determined on First in First Out (FIFO) basis. Cost
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. However, the aforesaid items are not valued below cost if the finished
products in which they are to be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

li. Finished products and Work in Progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value and
for this purpose. Cost of finished goods and work in progress includes direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity.

iii. Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated remaining costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any as they
are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Provisions, contingent liahilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined.

based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events,
whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are also present
obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized
in the financial statements but are disclosed separately.

Contingent assets are not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise
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g) Financial Assets

»

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade Receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets are
initially recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets other than trade receivables and those measured subsequently at
fair value through profit and loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

i. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the Effective Interest rate method (EIR). Amartized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium and fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR.

The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit & loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

iii.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OC) if these
financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thatare solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these assets are subsequently measured at Fair Value. Interest Income
under Effective Interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at Fair
Value through Profit and Loss

Equity Investments - All Equity investments within the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at Fair
Value. Such eqguity instruments which are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For all other
such equity instruments, the company decides to classify the same either as FVOCI or FVTPL.
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The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

For Equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes in the instrument excluding
dividends are recognized in OCI. Dividends on such equity instruments are recognized in the
statement of Profit or loss.

¥ De-recognition of Financial Assets:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
-The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments
measured at FYOC|) and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the statement
of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses in respect of debt instrument measured at FVOCI and that are
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Profit and Loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity
instruments measured at FVOCI that are recognised and accumulated in OCl are not reclassified to
Profit or Loss on derecognition.

h) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

i) Recognition and Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial Liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for anitem not at fair value through profit
and loss, net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

i) Classification and Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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k)

-Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial Liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

-Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liahility are substantially modified, such
an exchange or maodification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where
there is alegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Impairment

a. financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial asset measured at amortized cost.
Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the 'Simplified Approach' at an amount
equal to the Lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
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historically ohserved default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

In respect of other financial asset, the loss allowance is measured at 12-month ECL only, if there is
no significant deterioration in the credit risk since initial recognition of an asset or assetis determined
to have a low credit risk at the reporting date.

b. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down toits recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

c. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

» Sale of goods
The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered
to customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over
product is transferred to the customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Company
and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation
and revenue is recognized when such freight services are rendered.
Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
concessions, incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be
provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.

» Interest:
Interestincome including income arising on other instruments are recognised on time proportion
basis using the effective interest rate method.

m) Employee benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as define contribution plan and the contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due,

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The liahility or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominatedin Rs. is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period
on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
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Changes in present value of the defined benefit ohligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

c) Leave Entitlement

Leave entitlement are provided based on an actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit.
Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

d) Short-term Benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, performance incentives etc. are recognised as
expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the
related service is rendered.

Taxation

i. Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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o)

p)

q)

s)

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of
bonus issue, if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any bonus
shares issues.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are
segregated.

Trade Payables & Trade Receivables.

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods
purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities
for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are
unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the
contract. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of business, Trade receivables are recognised
initially at transaction values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method (if
there is a financing element), less provision for expected or lifetime credit loss.

Segment Reporting

Based on " Management Approach "as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments the chief operating
decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating results of the whole company as one
segment of “Agro Chemicals”. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108, the Company’s entire business falls
under this one operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed
in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss. The analysis of geographical segments is
based on the areas in which customers of the company are located.
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Note 4. Property, plamt and equipment and capital work-in-progress

(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwlsa stated)

Furniture,
Fixtures
Particulars :a:l:::w Dl.h‘er -Plalnt and 2 Eabflr!tnr\r office Compiters  Vehicles Lease hald Total
il < Electrieal - uipmeal tand
Installation
Gross Carrying Value
Balance at 15t Aprll, 2023 90.67 213 105.64 1.09 0.74 177 0.92 13.34 39.00 254.80
Additions - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - * - - - 11.57 1157
Balance at 315t March, 2024 50.67 213 105.64 1.09 0.74 137 0.92 177 39.00 243.23
Additions 3.03 * 48.70 3.55 513 511 034 = = 65.86
Disposals - 213 6.03 - - - - . 8.17
Balance at 315t March 2025 93.70 - 143.31 4.64 5.87 638 1.26 1.77 39.00 300.92
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 15t April, 2023 17.47 0.14 24.46 0.57 0.39 071 10.36 - 54.10
Depreciation charge 14.10 013 20.04 0.27 0.18 016 0.31 - 3519
Disposals - - - - - B.98 - 898
Balance at 315t March, 2024 31.57 0.27 44.49 0.84 0.57 - 0.87 1.6% - £B0.31
Depreciation charge 11.53 0.12 14.11 D28 a.50 041 013 - - 27.08
Disposals - 0.39 1.75 . - - B 2.14
Balance at 315t March 2025 43.10 0.00 56.85 1.12 1.07 041 1.00 1.69 = 105.25
Net carrying value as on 31st March, 2025 50.61 {D.00} 91.45 3.52 4.79 5.97 0.26 0.08 39.00 195.67
Net carrying value as on 31st March, 2024 59.10 1.86 61.15 0.25 0.17 1.7 0.05 0.08 35.00 162.91

In the Previous Year the Company has changed accounting policy to account PPE under cost medel so as to align with the accounting policy and management estimates
followed by the company having contrel Accordingly effects are Incorperated in financial results and financizl position for the year ended March 31, 2024, Revaluation
lated depreciation. The Depreciation and amortisation of PPE and ROU

reserves of R5.992,34 lakhs is removed as on 1st April 2022 and PPE is rei

assetsis decreased by Rs.53,23 lakhs in FY 20

Note 5 - Capital Work in Progress

23-24,

Particulars Total
Opening balance as on 01-04-2023 4.61
Addition

Less: Capitalised during the year -
Closing balance as on 31-03-2024 4.61
Addition 24,16
Less: Capitalised during the year 5258
Less: Written off 4.61
Clasing balance as on 31-03-2025 3158
There no cost and time overruns in any of the project.

Capital-Work-[n Progress (CWIP) ageing scheduls [s as under:

Project in Progress

Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024
Less than 1 year 31.58 p
1-2 years R d
2to Jyears = 4.61
>3 years . o
Total 31.58 4.61

d at cast less ace
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the yearended March 31,2025
(Al figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As B e
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Investments In Equity Instruments - Unquoted (at fair value through Profit & Lass (FVTPL))
13,193 (P.¥.13,193) shares of face value Rs.100/- each of Tarapur Environment Protection Soclety. 1872 18.72
18.72 18.72
Loans
As at As at
Parvicuiars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwlse stated
Loan To Employees - 041
- 0.41
Other Financial Assets
Particulars Non- Current Current
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits - 233 327
Advance towards Share Application 588
Total 5.88 . 2.33 3.27
Deferred tax liabilities/(asset) net
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Deferred tax liability:
Property, plant and equipment (1.23) (13.12)
Deferred tax asset:
Provision for nen moving inventories - 10.13
Provision for Employee benefit 4,04 538
Others 0.89 -
Total .70 239
Note; The company has created Deferred Tax Asset on its unabsorbed |osses considering the reasonable certainty of taxable profit.
Other Assets
Particulars Non- Current Current
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Advance Incame Tax (Net of Provision for Taxation) 327 5.76 - -
Adwvances ta Suppliers - - 6.06 -
Capital Advances 15.67
Balance with Revenue Authorities - - 74.90 24,08
Prepaid Expenses = - 0.58 096
Security Deposits® 1839 1840
Other receivable E - 20.23 .
37.33 24.16 101.76 25.04

*Includes Rs.8.30 lacs (PY. Fs.8.30 lacs) paid as deposit for Environment Relief Fund towards order passed by Hon'ble National Green

Tribunal and deposit against Company's share of contribution against 30% paid as per Hon'ble Supreme Court Order.
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11 Inventories

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Traded goods
Raw Materials 21017 93129
Work-in- Progress 143.01 49.60
Finished Goods 5.27 4.48
Finished Goods - Traded goods 0.34 0.34
Stores and Spares. 1.39 4.96
Packing Materials 1.03 0.44
Less: Provision for non moving inventories (36.42) (36.42)
Goods in Transit - -
Total 324.79 116.69
The disclosure of i ries recognised as an exy in accordance with paragraph 36 of IND AS 2 is as follaws:
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Amaount of Inventories recognised as an expense, 503,67 -
Amaount of write - down of inventories recognised as an expense - -
Total 503.67 -
12 Trade Recelvables
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Unsecured but considered good
Trade Receivables 2281 -
Trade Receivables - Related parties 583.19 -
Trade Recelvables which have significant increase in Credit Risk = =
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Trade Receivables which are credit impaired ERS | i
Less: Impalrment loss allowance (3.21) (3.21)
606.00 -
Details of Related Parties:
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Mikusu India Private Limited 573,58 -
Heranba Industires Limites 4.60 -
583.19 .
The trade recelvables ageing schedule (based on Bill date) for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 as follows:
Range of O/s period Undisputed Total
Considered Good Significant creditimpaired
Increase in credit
rlsk
Unbilled - - - -
Not Oue = e = ~
less than 6 manths 606.00 . - 606.00
€ months - 1 year - - - -
1-2 year = = - =
2-3year = = - =
> 3 years - 321 in
Total 606.00 - 3.21 £09.21
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - 3.21 3.21
Total 606,00 - - 606.00
There are no disputed trode receivables as at March 31,2025,
The trade receivables ageing schedule (based on Bill date) for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 as follows:
Range of Ofs period Undisputed Total
Considered Good Significant creditimpaired
increase in credit
risk
Unbilled - - - -
Mot Due 7 - L =
less than 6 months . . . .
& months - 1 year - - - -
1-2 year - . - -
2-3 year : . . -
> 3 years - 3.21 321
Total - - 3.21 321
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - 3.21 321
Total - . - A

There are no disputed trade recelvables as ot March 31,2024.
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Cash and cash equlvalents

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Cash on hand 0.26 0.11
Balances with banks:

-in current accounts 65.75 751.80
Total 66.01 751.91
Other Bank Balances

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Other Bank Deposits for ariginal maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months S 19.50
Unclalmed Dividend 2.62 611
Earmarked bank deposits 44.89 4254
Total 47.51 68.15
Equity share capital

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Authorised Share Capital:
65,00,000 (PY 65,00,000) Equity Shares of % 10/- each 650.00 650.00
Issued and subscribed capital:
60,00,000 (PY 60,00,000) Equity Shares of % 10/- each fully paid up 600.00 600.00
Total 600.00 £00.00
a) Reconclliation of number of equity share outstanding at the beginning and atthe end of the perlod

Mumber of
shares

Fully paid equity shares

Balance at 1st April, 2023 60,00,000
Increase/ (Decrease) during the period -
Balance at 315t March, 2024 60,00,000
Increase/ (Decrease) during the period -
Balance at 315t March, 2025 £0,00,000

b) Terms [ rights attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder of equity share is entitled to one

vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidatian of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company in
proportion ta the number of equity shares held by each shareholder, after settlement of all preferential cbligations.

¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares [n the company

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Mo of shares held % ofholding Mo ofsharesheld % of halding
Fully paid equity shares
Mikusu India Private Limited 29,08,719 48.48% 29,08,719 48.48%
d) Details of Promoters shareholders holding In equity shares of the company
For the year ended March 31, 2025
|Promoter Name No.of Shares | %oftotal shares | % Change during
the year
Promoters Group
Mikusu India Private Limited 29,08,719 48.48% 0.00%
Sams Industries Private Limited 2,295,801 3.83% 3.83%)
Nithyanand K Shetty 10,200 0.17% 0.00%]
Raghuram Kanayan Shetty 10,200( 0.17% 0.17%]
31,58,919 52.65%
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For the year ended March 31, 2024

Promoter Name No. of Shares | %of total shares | % Change during
the year
Promoters Group
Mikusu India Private Limited 29,08,719 A8.48%) 48.48%)
Surbhi Kishore Tanna 250 0.00% 0.00%,
Amit Jayant Patel -10,72,965 -17.88%) -17.88%)
Caffil Private Ltd -5,03,300.0 -8.39%| -3.39’%‘
Aditya Amit Patel -1,04,499.0 -1.74%| -1.74%]
Nitin Prabhudas Bhagat -50,000.0 -0.B3%| -0.83%]
Aruna Vinodchandra Merchant -46,645.0 -0.78% -0.78
Amit jayant Patel (HUF) -45,310.0 -0.76% -0.76"
Mita Bhagat -25,000.0 -0.42% -0.42%
Dhwani Aditya Patel -15,800.0 -0.26% -0.26%)
Aditya Amit Patel (HUF) -7,500.0 -0.13% -0.13%|
Other equity
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Securities Premium 34.49 34.49
General Reserve 202.00 202,00
Retained Earnings (Including Other Comprehensive Income) 48.74 217.23
285.23 453,72

a) The securities premium is used to record the premium on Issue of equity shares. The reserve Is utilised In accordance with the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013

b] The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from related earnings for appropriation purpose, As the General
Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the general reserve s not reclassified subsequently to the statement of Profitand Loss.

¢} The retained earnings comprise of surplus which is used from time to time to transfer profits by approprations. Retained earnings is
free reserve of the Company and is used for the purpose like Issuing bonus shares, buy back of shares and other purposes (like declaring
dividend etc.] as per the approval of the Board of Directors. It includes the remeasurements of defined benifit plan as per acturial
valuations which will not be re-classfied to to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

(i) Trade payables
Partlculars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3463 =
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 287.98 4.38
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - Related 148.58
Parties

471.19 4.38
Detalls of Related Parties:
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Heranba Industries Limited 63.48 .
Heranba Organics Private Limited 79.09 -

148,58 .
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The trade payable ageing schedule (based on Bill date) for the year ended on 315t March, 2025 as follows:

Range of Ofs period MSME Others
Undisputed Disputed Undisputed Disputed

Unbilled - - 11.74 -
Not Due - - - -
Less than 1 year 34.63 - 424.82 -
1-2 years - - - -
2-3 year - - - -
> 3 years - - - -
Total 34.63 . 436.56 -

The trade payable ageing schedule (hased on Bill date) for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 as follows:

Range of O/s period MSME Others
Undisputed Disputed Undisputed Disputed

Unbilled - - 4,11 -
Net Due " - . -
Less than 1 year - . =
1-2 years z 5 0.27 .
2-3 year - - - -
> 3 years - - - -
Total - - 4.38 -

The MSME Parties have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company, This is relied upon by the auditors,

Details of dues ta micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Principal amount due 3463
Interest due on abave 0.10 -
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each - -
accounting year
Amount of Interest paid in terms of Sec 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - .
Development Act, 2006
Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay 0.10 -
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.10 -
Amount of further Interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding year - -
Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Interest accrued payahle on MSME 0.12 &
Employee Benefits Payable 12.42 85.14
Unpaid Dividend* 2.62 6.11
Total 15.16 91,26
* During the year the Company has transferred amount of Rs.3.49 Lakhs to Investor Education & Protection fund .
Other current liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Current
Statutory liabilities 2.68 11.45
Total 2.68 11,45
Provision
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Non Current
Provision for Gratuity 52.79 -
Provision for Leave encashment 6.33 -
59.12 -
Current
Provision for Gratuity 6.63 5.38
Provision for Leave encashment 1.28 12.09
7.91 17.47




DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L24114MH1992PLCOG7309
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Diselosure in accordance with Ind AS - 19 “Employee Benefits”, of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

The company has carried out the actuarial valuation of Gratuity and Leave Encashment liability under actuarial principle, in accordance with Ind
AS 19 - Employee Benefits.

Gratuity Is a defined benefit plan under which employees who have completed flve years or more of service are entitled to gratuity on departure
from employment at an amount equivalent to 15 days salary (based on last drawn salary) for each completed year of service restricted to Rs
20.00 lacs. The Company's gratuity liability is partly funded.

i) The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation of Gratuity over the year is as

follow:
Particulars Ason
March 31, 2025
{a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined benefit Obligation
Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 74.98
Interest Cost 5.25
Current Service Cost 329
Benefits paid by the Fund (13.34)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience Adjustment 6.10
Defined Benefit obligation at the year end 76.28
{b) Reconclliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 69.60
Interest Income 487
Employer Contribution (40.85)
Benefits Paid From the Fund (13.34)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (3.42)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 16.86
(€) Actual Return on Plan Assets
Interest Income 4,87
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (3.42)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 145
(d) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
Fair Value of Plan Assets 16.86
Present value of Defined Benefit obligation 76,28
Liability recognized In Balance Sheet 59.42
{e) Expenses recognized during the year (Under the head “ Employees Benefit Expenses)
Current Service Cost 3.29
Interest Cost 0.38
Net Cost 3.67
{f} Actuarial (Gain)/Loss- Other Comprehensive Income 9,52
(i) Actuarial Assumptions
Particulars Akt
iarch 31, 2025
Expected return on Plan Assets 6.72%
Discount rate (per annum) 6.72%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8%
Attrition rate For Service 4 years
and below :
10.00% p.a. and
For Service 5 years
and above : 2.00%
p.a.
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
{2012-14)

Ultimate




DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L24114MH1992PLCO67309
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwlse stated)

(iii) Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Employer

Particulars 2
March 31, 2025
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 8.01
2nd Following Year 1.64
3rd Following Year 175
4th Following Year 4.49
Sth Following Year 194
6th ta 10th Following Year 51,45
for Years 11 & abave 65.98

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market, The above infarmaticn is certified by the actuary.

There is no minimum funding requirement for a gratuity plan in India and there is no compulsion on the part of the company fully or partially pre-
fund the liabilities under the plan.

Iv) Sensitivity analysis
A guantitative Sensitivity analysis for significant assumption

Partic Discount Salary Growth Attrition Rate
ulars Rate Rate

Changes n Assumption

March 31, 2025 1% 1% 1%

Increase in assumption
March 31, 2025 (5.50) 6.00 (0.42)

Decrease in assumption
March 31, 2025 613 (5.48) 0.45

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:
1, Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

2. Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.5ec. Riate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher
provisien. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset,

3. Investment Risk; The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Currently, far the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and cther debt Instruments.

4. Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Incame
Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

S, Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age anly, plan does not have any
langevity risk.

6. Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all
the assets, Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.
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DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L24114MH1992PLCOGTI0T
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

21 Revenue from Operations

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Sale of Goods 749.75 =
749,75 L
| Disclosure In accordance with Ind AS - 115 "Revenue Recognition Disclosures”, of the Companles (Indfan Acc ing Standards] Rules,
2015

Revenue disaggregation based on Service Type and by Geographical Region:

Revenue disaggregation by type of Service Is as follows:
Major Service Type Year ended 315t Year ended 31st
Mar 2025 Mar 2024
Sale of Agrochemicals 749.75 -
749.75 -
Revenue disaggregation by geographical region is as follows:
Geographlcal Reglon Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
Mar 2025 Mar 2024
India 746,98 3
Outside India 2.77 .
Total revenue from operations 749.75 -
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 749,75 =
Total revenue fram operations 749.75 5

Contract Balances

Balances at the beginning of the year . 2
Revenue recognised that is included at the beginning of the period - -
Advances received which have remained outstanding at the end of the year - .

Significant adjust ts between the contracted price and revenue recognized in the Statement of profit and loss account:

Particulars Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
Mar 2025 Mar 2024

Reconciliation of revenue from operations with Contract Price

Contract Price 749,75 -

Less:

Discounts - =

Total Revenue from operations 749.75 -

22 Other Income

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Interest Income 26,23 60.80
Profit On Sale OF Assets 20,53 10.31
Sundry Balances Written Back 0,00 0.00
Export Incentives 0.09 *
46.85 7111

23 Cost of materials consumed

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Raw Material / Packing Material

Opening Stock 93.29 93.29
Add : Purchases (Net of Discount) 715.78 .
Less ; Closing stock 211.20 9329

Total 597.87 -
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DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED

CIN: L24114MH1892PLCO67309

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the yearended March 31,2025

(ANl figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

[} In Inventorles of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress and Stock in Trade
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Inventory adjutment - WIP
Opening Stock of Work In Progress 49.60 49.60
Closing Stock of Work In Progress 143.01 49.60
(93.41) .
Inventary adjutment - Finished Goods
Opening Stock of Finished Gaods 4.48 448
Closing Stock of Finished Goods 527 448
(0.79) -
Inventory adjutment - Stock-in-Trade
Opening Stock of Stock-in-Trade 0.34 0.34
Closing Stock of Stock-in-Trade 0.34 0.34
Total (94.20) -
Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Salaries, wages and bonus, etc, 100.62 133.22
Contribution to provident and other funds 1112 28.61
Staff welfare expense 2.64 0.89
Total 114.38 162,72
Finance Costs
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Interest on Delayed Payments to MSME 0.10 -
Total 0.10 -
Depreciation and Amortization
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Depreciation 27.08 35.19
27.08 35.19
Other Expenses
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Cansumption of Stores and Spares 10.98
Consumption of Packing Material 6.19 -
Rates & taxes 317 235
Pawer and Fuel 52.89 17,70
Freight 183 -
Repairs & Maintinance Building 5.47 X
Repairs & Maintinance Plant & Machinery 123.89 .
Repairs & Maintinance Others 12.76 0.59
Insurance premium 1.96 2,00
Audit Fees 273 2,70
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 2.34 0.55
Legal & Professional Charges 12.38 892
Membership and Filing Fees 556 4,31
Exchange Difference 0.24 -
Office Expenses 0.03 -
Factory Expenses 17.06 0.82
Security Expense 11,18 9.62
Sales Promotion Expenses 0.87 1.48
C&F Charges 038 -
Sitting Fees 235 1.68
Labour Expenses 19.89 -
Impairment of capital work In progress 461 z
Bank charges 0.65 0.47
Other Expenses 12.22 8.90
Total 311.64 62.48
a. Audit Fees
- Statutory Audit fees including Limited Review 2.70 2.70
- Certificates 0.03 -
Total 2.73 2.70




DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED

CIN: L24114MH1992PLCOG7309

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

29 Tax Expense

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Current Tax
Tax for the year - -
Deferred Tax Expenses (1.31) 0.94
Income Tax expense (1.31) 0.94
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Accounting profit before income tax (160.29) (189.28)
Enacted tax rates in India (%) 27.82% 27.82%
Computed expected tax expenses (44.59) [52.66)
Tax effects of amounts that are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Net changes on account of disallowances 10.84 -
Net changes on account of Allowances (12.89) .
Capital Gain 3.17 -
Losses to be carried forward 43.47 52.66
Income tax expenses - 5
Deferred tax assets f {/labilities) in relation to: Opening Balance  Recognised in Recognisedin  Closing Balance
profitor loss Other
Comprehensive
Income
As at March 31, 2025
Provision for non moving inventories 10.13 (10.13) - -
Pravision for Employee benefit 5,38 (1.34) - 4,04
Property, plant and equipment (13.12) 11.89 - {1.23)
Others - 0.89 0.89
2.39 131 - 3,70
As at March 31,2024 -
Provision for non maving inventories 10.13 - - 10.13
Provision for Employee benefit 2.85 253 - 538
Property, plant and equipment (9.65) (3.47) - (13.12)
Total 3.33 (0.94) - 2.39
30 Earnings Per Share
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Profit / {Lass) for the period (% in Lakh) (158.98) {190.20)
Qutstanding equity shares at period end 60,00,000 60,00,000
Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the pericod — Baslc 60,00,000 60,00,000
Welighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the period - Diluted £0,00,000 60,00,000
Earnings per Share - Basic (% Per Share) (2.65) (3.17)
Earnings per Share - Diluted (T Per Share) (2.65) (3.17)
31 Contingent Liabllity and Capital C i t
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Contingent Liability
Outstanding Bank Guarantee [B.G. of Rs.18.50 Lacs is Expired for more than year) 38.50 38.50
GST Demand in Appeal$ 84,75 -
Disputed demand with MPCB/NGT case pending at Supreme Court* 18.00 18.00
Disputed demand with MPCB/NGT case pending at Supreme Court® 8.67 8.67
* (30% Deposit placed with Supreme Court against cases pending)
4| Rs. 3.66 Lakhs paid as pre- depasit )
Capital Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed In Capital Account and not provided for 3.20 -
.20 -

Total
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DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L24114MH1992PLCO67309
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all assets other than Property, Plant & Equipment and non-current investments have a value on
realization in the ordinary course of business at |east equal to the amount at whichthey are stated in the Balance Sheet,

Disclosure In accordance with Ind AS - 108 “Operating Segments”, of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that business enterprises report information about operating segments and related
disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. As the Company is engaged in providing similar nature
of products, production process, customer types etc., the company has a single operating segment of "Agro chemicals” , there are no
differing risks and returns attributable to the Company’s services to its customers.

The Company has sold 95% of its total sales to a single customer,

Related Party Transactions
Disclasure in accordance with Ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures®, of the Companies | Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
Details are glven in Statement -1

Financial Instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instr ts by categories as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Carting Value Falr Value Carring Value Fair Value

Finaneial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Investments 18.72 1872 18,72 18.72

Financial Assets at amortised cost

Loans - - 0.41 0.41
Trade Receivable €06.00 606,00 - -
Cash and cash equivalents €6.01 €6.01 751,91 75191
Other Bank Balance 4751 4751 68.15 £8.15
Other Financial Assets 821 8.21 3.27 327
Total 746.45 746.45 f42.46 B42.46

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables 471.19 471,19 4,38 4.38
Other Financial Liabilities 15.16 15.16 91.26 91.26
Total 486.35 486.35 95.64 95.64

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and labilities at amortised cost approximate thelr carrying amounts largely due tothe short-term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments
Into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2=Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1.2, as prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fallowing table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring
basis as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Fair Value measurement using

Significant

Quoted prices in Significant

Date of Valuation| active markets Bb:;:::m uncbservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs [Level 3)
Finan sets measured at fair value:
[Investimen!s 31-Mar-25 - - 18.72
|Investments 31-Mar-24 - - 18.72

Financial Liabillties measured at fair value:
31-Mar-25 a 5 i
31-Mar-24 % = P
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(Al figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

37 Financial Risk Management
Risk management framework:
The Company's actlvities expose it to a varlety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior
management oversees management of these risks. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek
to minimize patential adverse effects on its financial performance.

I} Market Risk

a,  Forelgn currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
not exposed to currency risk as at March 31, 2025,

b,  Interestrate risk
The Company is not exposed to Interest risk as at March 31, 2025.

i) Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's recelvables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and cantinuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the
normal course of business,

Trade and Other Receivables:

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
environment In which the entity operates. Based on the historical data of defaults and financial position of parties, chances of credit
losses are minimal.

fi)  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
instruments. Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding
through committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due,
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and eash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The Company manages its liquidity risk by preparing month on month cash flow projections to monitor liquidity requirements.

The Working Capital Position of the Company is given below:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Inventory 324.79 %
Trade receivables 606.00 -
Cash and Bank Balance 113.52 820.06
Other Financial Assets 233 3.27
Other Current Assets 101.76 25.04
Total 1,148.40 848.37
Less:
Trade payables 471.19 438
Other Financial Liabilities 15,16 91.26
Other Current liabilities 2,68 11.45
Provision 7.91 17.47
496.96 124.56
Net Working Capital 651.44 713.81

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars Less than 1 year 2-5years More than 5 Total
years

As at 31st March 2025

Trade Payable 471.19 - - 471,19
Other Financial Liabilities 15.16 - - 15.16
Total 486.35 - - 486,35
As at 31st March 2024

Trade Payable 4.38 . - 4.38
Other Financial Liabilities 91.26 - - 91.26

Total 95.64 - - 95,64




DAIKAFFIL CHEMICALS INDIA LIMITED
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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38 Capltal management
Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital
ratios In order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in econamic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or lssue new shares.

Since there are no Borrowlngs as at March 31,2025, the Net Debt to Capital {Gearing Ratia) [s NIL.

39 Relationship with Struck off Companies
The information about transaction with struck off Companies [defined under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1556) has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with
the Company and the same is relied upon by the auditors.

40 Analytical Ratlos
Analytical Ratios as per requirements of Schedule |l are given in Statement 2

41 Audit Trail

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(MCA) by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 and vide notification dated 24 March 2021
has issued the “Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021 has prescribed a new requirement for eompanles under the
proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted requiing companies, which uses accounting software for
maintaining its books of account, shall use enly such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and
ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

As required under above rules, the company uses, Tally Prime which has an audit Trail feature w.e.fluly 23, 2024, The previous version of
the accounting software did not have the feature of audit trail. Further, for the periods that the audit trail was enabled [with effect from
luly 23, 2024) and operated as aforesaid, the same has been maintained without any tampering and preserved by the company in
compliance with the applicable statutory requirements for record retention.

42 The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement, staternent of changes in equity, statement of material accounting
policy information and the other explanatory notes forms an integral part of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025,

43 Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date attached For & on behalf of the Board of Directers
For Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP Daikaffil Chemicals India Limited
{Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglsgration No. 106871W/W101085 \R}}r/f/ \K \
5

ayendr RK Shetty ~5h
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 040441 DIN: 00038703 DIN: 00038681

Mumbai
Date: May 21,2025

ay C Patel
Company Secretan

ief Financial Officer
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Statement 1- Related Party Transactions

A. Relationship
a Mikusu India Private Limited
b Heranba Industries Limited

B a M/sAmichem
b Heranba Organics Private Limited

Entity where control exist

Holding Company of Mikusu India Private Limited

Enterprise over which KMP is having Significant Influence till 12 /04/2024
Fellow Subsidiary of entity where control exist

C HKey Management Personnel and their Relatives

a Mr. Amit Patel
b Mr. Aditya Patel

¢ Mr. Sudhir Patel

d Mrs. Maithili Siswawala
e Mr. Sunil Merchant

f Mr. Sadashiv K. Shetty
g Mr. Raghuram K. Shetty
h Mr. Omprakash Singh

I Mr. Bhagavati K Donga

Director till 12/04/2024
Director till 27/03/2024

Independent Director till 07/11/2023
Independent Director till 27/11/2023
Independent Director till 27/03/2024

Director with effect from 26/03/2024
Director with effect from 26/03/2024
Director with effect from 26/03/2024
Director with effect from 26/03/2024

D The following are the transactions with related parties

Balated

party transactions

5

Entitly where control Fellow Subsidiary of Key Management Total
Sr. Mo GRS agcttan exist entity where control Personnel and their 5
No. exist Relatives

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-29 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

1| Service charges for use of premises - - - 1.60 - 1.60
M/s Amichem 1.60 - 1.60

2 | Remuneration Paid - - 4.62 - 4.62
Mr. Aditya Patel - 4.62 - 4.62

3 | Sitting fees paid to directors - - 2.36 1.68 2.36 1.68
Mr. Sudhir Patel - 0.55 - 0.55
Mr. Sunil Merchant - 0.55 ] 0.55
Mrs. Maithili Siswawala = 0.28 - 0.28
Mr. Amit Patel = 030 - 0.30
Mr. Ompraksh Singh 1.18 - 1,18 -
Mr. Bhagavati K Donga 1.18 1.18 -

4 | Purchase of Goods 58.94 - 67.04 - - - 125.98 -
Heranba Organics Private Limited - 67.04 67.04
Heranba Industries Limited 58.94 58.94 =

5 | Expenses incurred on our behalf 93.62 - 93.62 -
Mikusu India Private Limited 93.62 - 93.62 -

6 | Sale of Goods 716.69 . - - 716.69 -
Heranba Industries Limited 3m - 301 -
Mikusu India Private Limited 713.68 713.68 -

7 | Purchase of Fixed Assets 1.06 - - - 3.68 - 4.74 -
Heranba Industries Limited 1.06 1.06 -
Heranba Organics Private Limited 3.68 368 -

8| Sale of Fixed Assets 0.88 - - - - - 0.88 -
Heranba Industries Limited 0.88 - = = - - 0.88

9 | Outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date 643.48 - 79.09 - 722,57 -
Heranba Industries Limited 64,89 64.89 -
Mikusu India Private Limited 578.59 578.59 -
Heranba Organics Private Limited 79.09 79.09 -

Terms and conditions

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis, None of the balance Is secured.
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Statement 2- Analytical Ratlos

therwise stated

Sr. Ratio Numerator/ Ratio Ratlo Variance Reason for variance
No. Denominator (2024-25) (2023-24)
1 Current ratio Current Asset 231 7.75 70.18% Current Ratio is improved due
Current Liabilities to settlement of trade
payables and other current
liabllities.
?  Debt-Equity ratio Total Debts - E NA
Shareholders Equity
3 DebtService Coverage ratio Earnings available for debt - - NA
servic
Debt Service
4 Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes - 16.40% 16.56% 0.96%
ROE) Preference Dividend
Average Shareholder's Equity
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold OR sales 228 - 0.00% There are no corresponding
Average Inventory comparables for the previous
year, hence varlance is not
computed.
6 Trade Receivables turnover Net Credit Sales 2.47 - 0.00% There are no corresponding
ratio comparables for the previous
Average Accounts Recelvable year, hence variance is not
computed.
7 Trade payables turnover Expenses excluding 343 - 0.00% There are no corresponding
ratio Depreciation and Employee comparables for the previous
benefit expense year, hence variance is not
Average Trade Payables computed.
B Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales 1.01 - 0.00% There are no correspending
pverage working capital comparables for the previous
year, hence variance s not
computed.
5 Net profit ratio Met Profit after Tax -21.20% - 0.00% There are no corresponding
Net Sales comparables for the previous
year, hence variance is not
computed.
10 Return on Capital employed  Earning before interest and -18.10% -17.96% -0.74%
(ROCE) taxes
Capital Employed
11 Return on Investment (RDI) -M —Sum [C NA NA NA

{MIV(TD) + Sum [W(t) * Clt)]}




